
Committee Agenda  
 

 

1 

 

 
AREA PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE SOUTH 
Monday, 12th December, 2011 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Mark Jenkins  (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564607   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, 
L Leonard, A Lion, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, B Sandler, 
P Spencer, Mrs J Sutcliffe, H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND APPOINTED 
SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY 

OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE. 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Monday, 12 December 2011 
 

2 

 
 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   

 
  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  

 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/EPF/11/11: EMMAUS 
WAY  (Pages 15 - 16) 

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Monday, 12 December 2011 
 

3 

 8. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 17 - 56) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 9. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS, APRIL 2011 TO SEPTEMBER 
2011  (Pages 57 - 66) 

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 
 10. DELEGATED DECISIONS   

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 

determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Monday, 12 December 2011 
 

4 

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2011-12 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

Cllr James 
Hart 

Cllr Dodeja 

Cllr Angold-
Stephens 

Cllr Barrett 

Cllr Lion Cllr 
Markham 

Cllr 
Mohindra 

Cllr Pond 

Cllr 
Spencer 

Cllr 
Sutcliffe 

Cllr 
Wagland 

Cllr 
Richardson 

Cllr Cohen Cllr Finn Cllr Jennie 
Hart 

Cllr 
Knapman 

Cllr Watson Cllr Chana 

Cllr Ulkun 

Cllr 
Cochrane 

Cllr Leonard 

Cllr 
Sandler 

Cllr Wixley 

Use this QR code to 
access contact 
details for this 
Committee 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 

South 
Date: 2 November 2011  

    
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
Time: 7.30  - 10.10 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Ms S Watson (Chairman), B Sandler (Vice-Chairman), R Barrett, 
Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, 
L Leonard, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, 
H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
-  

  
Apologies: J Hart, K Angold-Stephens, K Chana, A Lion, P Spencer and Mrs J Sutcliffe 
  
Officers 
Present: 

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), C Neilan (Landscape Officer & 
Arboriculturist), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer), L Eales (Youth 
Council Administrator) and G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer) 

  
 

36. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 
 

37. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman took over the Chairmanship and 
requested nominations for the now vacant role of Vice-Chairman. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) That Councillor B Sandler be elected Vice-Chairman for the duration of the 
meeting. 
 

38. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(1) That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2011 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
Tree Warden in Epping Forest. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2 November 2011 

2 

not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 
• TPO/25/11 7 Ardmore Lane, Buckhurst Hill; and 
• TPO/10/11 Hazelwood, Loughton. 
 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Ms S Watson 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of having a 
family member living in Hazelwood. The Councillor had determined that her interest 
was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
• TPO/10/11 Hazelwood, Loughton. 
 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors J Knapman, 
G Mohindra, B Sandler and Mrs L Wagland declared a personal interest in the 
following items of the agenda, by virtue of being members of Chigwell Parish Council. 
The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 
• EPF/1497/11 Manor Hall, 144 Manor Road, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1637/11 6 Millwell Crescent, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1671/11 Land adj 14 Ely Place, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1699/11 15 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1732/11 Lingmere, Vicarage Lane, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1745/11 1 Pudding Lane, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1857/11 20 Lechmere Avenue, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1895/11 49 Lee Grove, Chigwell; and 
• EPF/1896/11 49 Lee Grove, Chigwell. 
 
(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs C Pond, 
Mrs P Richardson and D Wixley declared a personal interest in the following item of 
the agenda, by virtue of being members of Loughton Town Council. The Councillors 
had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/1616/11 1 Majorams Avenue, Loughton. 
 
(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors D Dodeja 
and Ms S Watson declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by 
virtue of being members of Buckhurst Hill Parish Council. The Councillors had 
determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for 
the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/1686/11 9 Field Close, Buckhurst Hill. 
 
(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Dodeja 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being 
acquainted with the resident of the property. The Councillor had determined that his 
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon: 
• EPF/1857/11 20 Lechmere Avenue, Chigwell. 
 

40. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
The Democratic Services Officer reported that there was no other urgent business for 
consideration by the Sub-Committee. 
 
 

Page 10



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2 November 2011 

3 

41. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER EPF/25/11 - 7 ARDMORE 
LANE, BUCKHURST HILL  
 
The Principal Landscape Officer presented a report on the confirmation of a Tree 
Preservation Order at 7 Ardmore Lane in Buckhurst Hill. 
 
The Principal Landscape Officer reported that the property had a large, prominent 
cedar tree in the front garden, which made a significant positive contribution to the 
street scene. Consequently, the tree was considered to be an important feature 
within the street scene and the confirmation of the existing tree preservation order 
had been recommended without modification. 
 
The Sub-Committee was informed that the executors of the estate of the owner had 
objected to the confirmation of the Order, on the following grounds: 
 
(i) The confirmation of the preservation order would have a detrimental effect on 
the value of the property. One prospective purchaser had already withdrawn 
following a surveyor’s report. The property had now been unoccupied for eleven 
months and it was feared that the property would be unsellable due to the tree and its 
preservation order. 
 
(ii) The tree was obtrusive to the property and obstructed light from the rooms to 
the front of the house. The house was north facing and the tree blocked the little light 
available to the front of the property. 
 
(iii) The needles from the cedar tree blocked gutters and downpipes when they 
dropped from the tree. They also became slippery and wet on the pavement, which 
would have health and safety implications for passing pedestrians. 
 
(iv) The tree was too large for the space available in the front garden, and was 
not upright but leaned towards the adjacent property. 
 
(v) There was a more imposing cedar in the grounds of Braeside School, 
therefore the cedar at 7 Ardmore Lane was neither a singular specimen nor the best 
in the area. 
 
The Principal Landscape Officer responded to the Objector’s points as follows: 
 
• The value of a property was not a planning consideration, and the majority of 

trees that could cause subsidence of adjoining properties actually did not. 
 
• There was no evidence that such properties with large trees in their front 

gardens were unsellable. 
 
• The property was north facing, and as such the front rooms would never 

receive direct sunlight. The tree had been crown lifted and was fairly open 
aspected, which would allow light into the property. 

 
• It was accepted that the tree would drop debris into the guttering, however 

this problem could be minimised through judicious pruning of the tree, 
provided the overall shape of the tree was retained. 

 
• The presence of a mature cedar elsewhere did not detract from the value of 

this tree, being prominent within the street scene and providing balance with 
other trees. 

 
Page 11



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2 November 2011 

4 

The Principal Landscape Officer concluded that trees in urban areas provided value 
and benefit to the community. The tree in question in question could be crown lifted 
again to alleviate some of the light concerns, whilst there was no evidence of any 
subsidence being caused by the tree at the current time. The majority of the Sub-
Committee concurred with the Officer’s assessment and confirmed the Order. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) That Tree Preservation Order TPO/25/11 at 7 Ardmore Lane in Buckhurst Hill 
be confirmed without modification. 
 

42. NON CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER - EPF/10/11 
HAZELWOOD, LOUGHTON  
 
The Principal Landscape Officer presented a report regarding Tree Preservation 
Order TPO/10/11 in Hazelwood, Loughton.  
 
The Principal Landscape Officer reported that the Order was intended to protect a 
number of trees that had originally been covered by an area order made in 1970. 
Following the sealing of the document but prior to the serving of the Order, it was 
discovered that some trees within Upper Park had also been included so the title of 
the Order was incorrect, and that some important trees had been omitted in error. A 
new replacement Order TPO/26/11 had been sealed and served to rectify these 
omissions, and the Sub-Committee was requested to not confirm the original, 
erroneous Order. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) That Tree Preservation Order 10/11 in Hazelwood, Loughton be not 
confirmed. 
 

43. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) That the planning applications numbered 1 – 11 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes. 
 

44. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 12



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee 
South  
 
Date of meeting: 12 December 2011 
 
Subject: CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

TPO/EPF/11/11: EMMAUS WAY 
 

 
Officer contact for further information:  Christopher Neilan (01992 564117) 
Democratic Services:             Mark Jenkins         (01992 564607) 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
That the tree preservation order TPO/EPF/11/11 be confirmed without modification.  
 
Background 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Tree Preservation Order TPO/EPF/11/11 was sealed on 22 March 2011.  It is 
a re-protection order, designed to replace TPO/CHI/02/71.  Because CHI/02/71 was 
an area TPO it is less helpful to residents, who are unaware of which trees are 
protected, and also harder to enforce, because the trees are not plotted or recorded 
individually.   
 
1.2 The order protects 21 trees, mostly oaks, all specified individually.  It is a 
strategically important area of large, old trees, originally part of the convent grounds, 
and developed in the 1970’s.   
 
1.3 The original TPO stays in place, until such time as this replacement be 
confirmed. 
 
2. Objection 
 
2.1 An objection has been received to the confirmation of the order in respect of 
one tree only, T8, from the owners of 1 Emmaus Way in respect of an oak in the 
neighbouring garden, 4 St Mary’s Way.  The basis of their objection is as follows: 
 

a) The close proximity to properties; 
b) That it has outgrown its surroundings; 
c) That it is only a matter of time until it becomes dangerous 
d) The fact that a section of the crown overhangs the land of 1 Emmaus 
Way leads to serious problems, particularly the mess from bird droppings, 
pollen, debris and falling leaves in autumn.  This is a particular issue because 
the most affected area is the only dedicated car [parking area in front of the 
garage.   

 
2.2      In conversation the objector stated that he had no desire to see the tree felled, 
but   wanted the comfort that it could be dealt with at any time, without the need for 
application.   
 
3. Director of Planning and Economic Development Comments 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



 
3.1 Specific comments are as follows: 
 

a) The relationship to adjacent properties should not be unacceptable, 
subject to minor pruning, consent for which could readily be granted; 
b) It is a large tree in a suburban setting, but its size is related to its 
considerable local importance.  The owner’s garden is of a good size, and the 
location is not inherently unsuitable.   
c) There is no reason to think that the tree is likely to become dangerous, 
and if it were to happen it could be dealt with as an urgent case.   
d) The problems are recognised, but need to be balanced against the 
local importance of the tree as part of the landscape.  They could in any case 
be minimised although not eliminated by pruning.   

 
3.2     Control of trees by TPO does impose restrictions, and the need to make 
applications for consent; however there is strong general support for the TPO 
system, implied here by the fact that this is the only objection to the order.   
 
3.3      Consent was given for a limited reduction of side branches in 2010, but the 
Landscape Officer has advised the owner and neighbour that in principle he would 
support a greater reduction of its all around spread, as a better balance between the 
public amenity provided by the tree and reasonable limitation of the problems 
caused.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
4.1     It is recommended that Tree Preservation Order TPO/EPF/11/11 be confirmed 
without modification in line with policy LL7 of the Local Plan.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

12 December 2011 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/2207/11 5 Stradbroke Park  
Tomswood Road 
Chigwell 
 

Refusal 17 

2. EPF/0568/11 Land to the south of Roding Lane 
Buckhurst Hill 
 

Grant with conditions 21 

3. EPF/0567/11 Land on south side of Roding 
Lane,  
opposite junction with Rous Road  
and adjoining Buckhurst Hill 
Football Club 
Buckhurst Hill 

Grant with conditions 26 

4. EPF/1840/11 49 Epping New Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
 

Grant with conditions 29 

5. EPF/1876/11 9 Staples Road 
Loughton 
 

Grant with conditions 39 

6. EPF/1901/11 23 Tomswood Road 
Chigwell 
 

Refusal 44 

7. EPF/1908/11 40 Dickens Rise 
Chigwell 
 

Grant with conditions 50 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2207/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 5 Stradbroke Park  

Tomswood Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5QL 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Jegatheesvaren 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/54/08 
T1 - Swamp Cypress (T14 on TPO) - Fell 
T2 - Suppressed Oak (12 on TPO) - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532409 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Insufficient details have been provided to allow a proper examination of the likely 
impact of the tree on the property, contrary to policy LL09 of the Council's Adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations.. 

 
 
This application is before committee since all applications to fell preserved trees are outside the 
scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
T1. Swamp Cypress - Fell to ground level. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The Swamp Cypress is a fine maturing specimen, standing around 12 metres tall. It is located on 
the side boundary of this detached residence’s rear garden. It is clearly visible between the 
applicant’s house and the neighbouring property. The tree is a  rare and attractive feature and 
contributes to the greening of this residential cul de sac. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
This is the first application to undertake works to trees since the service of this order to replace a 
large 1951 County Order. 
N.B. that T2, a suppressed Oak, originally part of this application, has been found, on inspection, 
not to be included within the Order and will, therefore, not be considered in this report. 

Page 17



Relevant Policies: 
 
LL9 Felling of preserved trees. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
4 neighbours were consulted but no responses have been received. 

 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL objected to the proposal. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Issues 
 
The application is made on the basis that the tree has a large buttress root growing  towards the 
applicant’s house and is allegedly disrupting the paving slabs of the patio.  
 
Considerations 

 
i) Tree condition and life expectancy.  

 
T1 appears to be in a normal condition, with a long life expectancy of more than 20 years. The 
crown is even and vigorous and there are no obvious signs of structural problems with the tree. A 
large buttress root extends visibly at ground level for about 2 metres into the garden. 
 
ii) Amenity value  

 
This deciduous conifer stands at the boundary edge between two dwellings and stands out as an 
interesting and attractive, tall and upright specimen with potential to increase in significance with 
age. Therefore, its landscape value is moderately high.  
 
iii) Suitability of location. 
 
There is no damage to the patio that has been clearly proved to be tree related.    
Originally, the design of the housing scheme appears to have given due consideration to the 
tree’s’ proximity to the new house. However, in time and due to the fast growth of this deciduous 
conifer, the relationship between T1 and the applicant’s house and patio may become more 
strained by the growth of roots, in particular. However, the neat columnar form of this species will 
minimise the need to contain the tree’s crown spread and allow it to continue to grow at close 
range to the house. Therefore, the suitability of the tree in this location is acceptable with provision 
for selected root pruning, if necessary, in the future.  
 
Conclusion 

 
T1, Swamp Cypress has few faults and only a large buttress root to cause any concern, which 
may be managed by pruning measures, which in event of damage occurring in the future. It is, 
therefore, recommended to refuse permission to fell the tree on the grounds that the reasons given 
in respect of the root does not justify the loss of such a good tree. The proposal therefore runs 
contrary to Local Plan Landscape Policy LL9. 
 
It is recommended that this application is refused but, in the event of members grant permission to 
fell this tree, a condition should be attached to the decision notice, requiring the replanting of an 
agreed suitable replacement at an agreed location on the site. 
   
 

Page 18



 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Robin Hellier 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564546 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 19



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 

D e
f

B o r o  C o n s t  
&  L B  B d y

E E R  &  C o  C
o n s t  B

d y

FF

1 0

80

7

54

5
5 7

92

5

15

40

6 6

4 4

10

1

15a

B R A C K E N  D R I V E

CU L PEPPER CL O SE

S T R A D B R O K E  P A R K

LB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/2207/11 
Site Name: 5 Stradbroke Park, Tomswood Road 

Chigwell, IG7 5QL 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 20



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0568/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to the south of Roding Lane 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 6BJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

APPLICANT: Alliance Land (Properties) Ltd 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/110/10 
W1 - Woodland management as specified in attached 
management plan 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=526550 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 No tree felling shall take place in any season, until all those trees to be felled that 
season shall have been identified and marked at a site meeting, attended by the 
Local Planning Authority and the landowner, or his agent.  The tree felling in that 
season shall then be entirely confined to those marked trees.   
 

2 The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision 
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of 
such works in each and every instance. 
 

3 The crown reductions and renovation work to the several veteran trees and other 
trees to be retained and authorised by this consent shall be implemented as 
specified in the submitted site management plan dated May 2011. 
 

4 All work authorised by this consent shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with 
British Standard 3998 (2010) (or with any similar replacement Standard). 
 

5 The works hereby authorised shall be undertaken as timetabled in the site 
management plan, or a revised timetable if such shall have been submitted in writing 
to the LPA, and agreed in writing beforehand.   
 

6 A plan showing a timetable for planting of replacement trees, to include their 
number, species, size and position shall be submitted for the agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority, and shall then be planted as agreed, unless varied with the 
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years 
from the date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, 
dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species 
and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the 
Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 

Page 21



 
This application is before this Committee since it is in part an application to fell preserved trees 
and is recommended for approval and so is outside the scope of delegated powers. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
Selective thinning and coppicing of woodland area and remedial pruning of veteran trees, as set 
out in the revised management plan dated May 2011. Members will note that this report and 
recommendation needs to be taken alongside EPF/0567/11.   
 
Description of Site: 
 
The wood stands west of the Roding, off Roding lane, and to the rear of properties off Albert Rd 
and The Windsors, and Buckhurst Hill CP School.    
 
Relevant History: 
 
The Order was made in 1983, when the wood was relatively young, as a result of concerns that it 
might be threatened by potential development.  There have been no recent relevant applications.  
Access has been agreed for site surveying and clearance of Japanese Knotweed that were 
outside planning control.  
 
Relevant Policies: 
 
LL3: Edge of settlement.   
LL7: Planting, protection and care of trees. 
LL8: Works to preserved trees. 
LL9: Felling of preserved trees. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL:  Objects: contrary to local plans and would destroy wildlife 
corridors.   
 
CPRE:  Support the application, because appears designed to enhance the conservation value of 
the wood, and there are proposals to involve the community.   
Have suggestions, including that grants may be available, that improvement of this area has 
positive implications for the wider green network, that arisings could be usefully put to 
conservation purpose and that care should be taken with seed sources.  Hope that neighbours will 
continue to be informed.   
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Introduction 
 
The application is presented as being for the benefit of the wildlife value and appearance of the 
wood.  The proposals come as part of a comprehensive assessment of the site, in the form of a 
management plan leading to a 5 year program of works, shown in plan form, with accompanying 
schedules of works.   
 
The plan also gives details of works not controlled by the TPO, including re-profiling existing 
mounds of tipped material, restoration of ponds and ditches, planting of hedges and enhancement 
of the ground flora.  These works do not form part of this application, and cannot be secured by 
conditions attached to it, but may be considered and secured under the accompanying planning 
application.   

Page 22



 
The wood is an important visual feature of the area, valued by local residents.  It appears to have 
arisen by natural seeding from pre-existing hedgerow trees before being given blanket protection 
in 1983.  The land in part had been previously used in part for brickworks.   
 
The site may be divided into 2 areas, broadly north and south:  
1) north of an old internal ditchline, and fronting Roding Lane, and  
2) south of that ditch, and bounded by housing, and commercial premises on Alfred Rd, to the 

west, The Windsors to the south, and a playing field to the east.   
 
The northern section seems to be on the original ground.  Mostly it is thick with relatively young 
sapling trees, but there are important veteran trees along Roding Lane, and also towards the 
centre, by the old ditch and pond.  There is little ground cover, and in parts it is impenetrable.  The 
southern section appears to be where excavation had previously taken place.  There are groups 
of trees, but also open areas, with few or no trees, which are thickly covered by bramble.  There 
are also substantial piles of surface debris, with hardcore, bricks, tyres and other materials. There 
has been an extensive infestation by Japanese Knotweed to the west.  The owners have begun 
an eradication program.   
 
According to the proposals by year 5 small grassed glades would have been created in the 
northern section; restoration pruning would have been undertaken on the several veteran trees; 
the area around the central ditch and pond would have been opened up, and the more open 
southern area converted to meadow.  In that southern area the main groups of trees and 
important individuals would be retained, including the most important in the spur linking the wood 
to the junction of Alfred Rd to Roding Lane, and providing visual screening for residents in Alfred 
Rd. and Windsor Wood.   
 
Considerations 
 
The key issues are considered to be whether: 
1) The proposed staged thinning of younger trees will have beneficial results for biodiversity; 
2) The formative pruning of the veteran trees has been justified: 
3) Any potential negative consequences  may be foreseen; 
4) How the potential benefits may be secured.   
 
In relation to these the increase in internal spaces, and increased habitat diversity would be 
beneficial for wildlife and the pruning of the veteran trees would help to secure their long-term 
retention.   
 
The thinning proposals are quite modest, which should limit the change in external appearance of 
the site.  The proposals include the proviso that the management should be assessed at the end 
of each year; the next year’s proposals would not be allowed to commence if there had been any 
substantial departure from the proposals as agreed.  Words to secure this are suggested as a 
Grampian condition. 
 
Because of the very specific constraints in the legislation applying to replacing felled TPO trees the 
various wildlife and landscape benefits cannot be secured by condition under this application, but 
may be considered and conditioned under the accompanying planning application.   
 
Conclusion 
 
That the proposal accords with the relevant policies, and therefore it is recommended that it be 
approved. 
 
 

Page 23



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

17.1m

26.5m

24.4m26.2m

18.9m

28.0m

24.1m

28.3m

26.8m

31.4m

30.2m

29.9m

29.0m

Pavilion

46

2 9

48

6 1
4 1

5 3 5 5

Pavilion

1 6

2

1 8

30

15

8

1 0
1 2

1 4

23
19

9

21
17

1

6 7

41

35

25

37

40

45

39

43

4 9

15

23

88 90

19

20
a

20

39

16

1 3
1

2

27

2 4

1 4

3 6

Buckhurst Hill

Primary School

1
6

Tu d o r  P l a c e

Community

1 4

86

1 0

12

6 5

6

76

14

1

5 7

5 5

22

2 7

24
30

4 1

20

1 3

El
Sub Sta

5 5

1

40

40

74

62

8 3

6 9

Maple Lodge
1 to 12

54

23

13

2 0

1 2

1 3

2 5

11

T E
RR

A C
E

L O W E R  Q U E E N ' S  R O A D

A
L B

ER
T

T H E  W I N D S O R S

A L
F R

E D
 R

O
A D

L A N E

R O D I N G  L A N E

HUR S T  R OA D

P a t h

FBP la
yg

ro u
n d

Recreation Ground

Football Ground

P o s t

TCB

Yard
Builder's

P o
s t
s

Dr
ain

D r
ain

D r a i n

Pond

D r
a i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

D r a i n

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 & 3 
Application Number: EPF/0567/11 & EPF/0568/11 
Site Name: Land on south side of Roding Lane, opp. 

Junc. with Rous Road, Buckhurst Hill, IG9 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 25



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0567/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land on south side of Roding Lane,  

opposite junction with Rous Road  
and adjoining Buckhurst Hill Football Club 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

APPLICANT: Alliance Land PLC 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Carrying out of site management works to land, consisting of 
clearing ditch, digging out of pond, and levelling of earth 
mounds. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=526549 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 All of the site management works hereby approved shall be carried out on the site. 
To this end a written summary of works carried out in each phase shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before work commences on the 
next phase. 
 

3 Before any works on site commence written evidence of the following matters shall 
have been provided to the Local Planning Authority:- 
 
       a) that a licence has been granted by Natural England for works to be carried 
out to those parts of the site colonised by badgers. 
 
       b) that an environment permit has been granted, (or confirmation that one is not 
required) in respect of the spoil heaps and mounds on the site being removed and 
resulting material spread around the remainder of the site. 
 

4 Details of the design and position of the fence to be erected on the highway 
boundaries of the site, together with the associated hedge, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority before any works commence on this 
aspect of the overall scheme.   
 

 
 
 

Page 26



This application is before this Committee since a) the recommendation differs from the views of 
the local council (pursuant to section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s delegated function), and 
b) the proposed development needs to be considered alongside a concurrent application to carry 
out works to preserved trees on the site - which is a type of application that needs to be reported 
to Committee.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Carrying out of site management works to land including clearing ditch, digging out of pond, 
levelling of earth mounds, the provision of grassland areas, hedging and enclosing fence. These 
works would be carried out in 5 phases over a 5 year period. The site is covered by a blanket Tree 
Preservation Order and a concurrent application (EPF/0568/11) seeks consent for the removal of 
some trees and associated undergrowth.  
  
Description of Site: 
 
A sizeable ‘L’ shaped piece of land with an area of 0.17 hectares. It lies on the south side of 
Roding Lane opposite its junction with Rous Road, and lies close to the rear of properties in Alfred 
Road, and to the north of houses in the Windsors. Originally some or all of the site lay in the site of 
a brickworks factory, and the 49 houses to the south in The Windsors, and the adjoining Buckhurst 
Hill primary school, were built on this factory site. 
 
The site is not publicly owned. It is densely covered with trees and scrub, with trees being 
protected by a blanket Tree Preservation Order. The site lies in the Green Belt but adjoins the 
urban settlement of Buckhurst Hill. Some of the site has earth mounds which in part comprise of 
bricks and rubble used to fill the excavations associated with the original brickworks factory use. 
Whilst at present there is no fence around this site the density of trees, bushes, and scrub makes 
the site very difficult to enter.  
 
Relevant History:  
 
None. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 - Loss of amenity.      
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt 
NC4 - Protection of Established Habitat 
NC5 - Promotion of Nature Conservation Schemes. 
RP3 – Water Quality  
RP4 – Contaminated Land 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL – object – insufficient information on works to be 
undertaken 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 36 properties consulted, and a site notice erected. Two replies received:- 
 
72, ALFRED ROAD: comments that she would like to know what the future plans for the site are. 
 
51, RODING LANE: why are these site management works proposed? Ditches need clearing, yes; 
ponds need managing at times also; but if the badgers and other wildlife are happy in/on the earth 
mounds then what reason has the present owner to level them? What concerns me is that 

Page 27



‘levelling of earth mounds’ (presumably using a mechanical digger) could involve disturbance of 
wildlife, removal of trees, and nibbling at an area of Green Belt. 
 
EFDC COUNTRYCARE SECTION: I’ve read the management plan for this application and it looks 
fine. I would like to see Maydencroft Land Advisory’s October 2010 report in order to make 
additional comments.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
A detailed management (or environmental) plan produced by Maydencraft Land Advisory has 
been submitted with this and the concurrent application to thin and remove trees. It states that the 
key aims for the management of this site are a) to improve the amenity value of the site, b) to 
enhance the site for local wildlife, and c) clear the site of rubbish and fly tipping.  
 
The whole of this ‘Brickfields’ site is understood to have been initially acquired by Beazer Homes, 
who in the 1980’s developed the 49 homes on that part of the site to the immediate south now 
known as The Windsors. The current owners of the site are Alliance Land Properties, on behalf of 
whom the current application has been made. Their application is an unusual one and some 
concerns have been raised as to whether it is a precursor to future proposals to develop the site - 
although the site’s current Green Belt designation and blanket Tree Preservation Order would not 
allow for built development. The agents for the applicants have stated ‘the applicants are land 
traders and seek to improve site values and then sell on. At present the site is an impenetrable 
jungle whose amenity potential few people can appreciate. Once the site is accessible and secure, 
with areas of wild flowers, more woodland fringe and more ecological value, it will be attractive to 
amenity purchasers’ 
 
To complement any consent to remove/thin trees it is desirable to ensure that other ecological and 
environmental improvements to the site e.g. the creation of grassland glades, planting of wildlife 
flowers, and clearing of ditch and pond, are in fact carried out. To this end a condition is proposed 
which will ensure all aspects of the management plan are undertaken. A 1.2m high chain link 
fence is proposed on the highway boundaries to the site but will be accompanied by a thorn hedge 
planted behind it which will grow through the fence and screen it.  
 
Although only environmental works are proposed for the site there are constraints to overcome in 
respect of works to the spoil heaps and mounds in the site. Firstly, these heaps and mounds 
accommodate badger setts and a licence will have to be obtained from English Nature before any 
works commence. Secondly the proposal to break up these heaps and mounds and spread them 
around the site is likely to require an environmental permit from the Environment Agency since the 
mounds contain waste that could be contaminated. A condition is therefore proposed to be added 
to any planning permission requiring both these issues to have been resolved with the respective 
agencies before any works commence on site.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposals are appropriate development in the Green Belt.  They would provide for a more 
varied and improved natural habitat for vegetation and wildlife on this site. It is recommended that 
permission be granted subject to conditions. 
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  

Page 28



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1840/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 49 Epping New Road 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5JT 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Andrew Zacharia 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed conversion of existing dwelling into 5no 2 bed flats 
and 1no 1 bed flat, proposed two storey rear and side 
extension with dormers in loft conversion. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531031 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:  ZEEF/11/07, 10A, 11A, 12, 13A, 14A, 15A, 16A  
 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

4 The proposed window openings in the northern flank elevation shall be fitted with 
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of 
the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that 
condition. 
 

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Page 29



Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

7 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

8 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report 
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of 
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary 
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes 
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall 
be implemented.   
 

9 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

10 No development shall take place until details of a satisfactory ground gas 
investigation and risk assessment has been carried out and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in order to determine what if any ground gas 
remediation measures may be required or shall specify appropriate ground gas 
mitigation measures to be installed in the building(s) in lieu of any ground gas 
investigation.  
 
 

Page 30



The investigations, risk assessment and remediation methods, including remedial 
mitigation measures to be installed in lieu of investigation, shall be carried out or 
assessed in accordance with the guidance contained in BS 9485:2007 "Code of 
practice for the Characterisation and Remediation from Ground Gas in Affected 
Developments." Should the ground gas mitigation measures be installed, it is the 
responsibility of the developer to ensure that any mitigation measures are suitably 
maintained or to pass on this responsibility should ownership or responsibility for the 
buildings be transferred. 
 

11 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site. 
 

12 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

13 No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface materials for 
the parking areas, vehicular access and circulation areas have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surfacing shall 
be made of porous materials and retained thereafter or provision shall be made and 
retained thereafter to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or 
porous area or surface within the curtilage of the property. The agreed surface 
treatment shall be completed prior to the first occupation of the development or 
within 1 year of the substantial completion of the development hereby approved, 
whichever occurs first. 
 

14 Prior to the commencement of the development details of a refuse storage facility, 
which shall be at least 1.5m in depth to allow adequate space for bin storage, shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The agreed scheme shall 
be implemented prior to the first occupation of the development and thereafter be 
permanently retained.  
 

Page 31



 
15 The proposed development shall not be occupied until such time as the vehicle 

parking area indicated on the approved plans, including any parking spaces for the 
mobility impaired, has been provided in accordance with details approved pursuant 
to condition 13 and marked out in parking bays. The vehicle parking area shall be 
retained in this form at all times. The vehicle parking shall not be used for any 
purpose other than the parking of vehicles that are related to the use of the 
development unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 
 

16 Prior to the commencement of the development the details of the number, location 
and design of cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved facility shall be secure, convenient and 
covered and provided prior to occupation and retained at all times. 
 

17 No gates shall be provided at the vehicular access without the prior written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.  
 

18 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times. 
 

19 Details of privacy screens of at least 1.7m in height to be erected along the northern 
edge of the balcony adjacent to No51 Stag Lane, and the southern edge of the 
balcony adjacent to the adjoined property, and indicated on submitted plans no 
ZEEF/11/10a and 14a, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved screens shall be erected prior to the first use of 
the balconies and thereafter be permanently retained. 
 

20 The flat roof at ground floor level at the rear of the development hereby approved, 
shall not be enclosed and shall not be used for sitting out or the placing of furniture, 
including tables and chairs. 
 

21 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, details of 
boundary treatments shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval 
in writing. The agreed boundary treatments shall be erected prior to the first 
occupation of the building and shall be retained in that form thereafter.  
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since; 
 
It is an application for residential development consisting of 5 dwellings or more and is 
recommended for approval (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(d)) 
 
It is for a type of development that cannot be determined by Officers if more than two objections 
material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are received (Pursuant to The 
Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(f).) 
 
The recommendation is for approval contrary to an objection from a local council which is material 
to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning 
Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)) 

Page 32



 
Description of Proposal  
 
The proposal is to extend the existing building on the side and rear elevation over two storeys to 
create six flats. This would include five 2 bedroom flats and one 1 bedroom flat. The side 
extension would extend to the common boundary with the northern neighbour, No51 Epping New 
Road, at ground floor level, and would be set in 1.0m at first floor level. A covered accessway at 
ground floor level would provide access to the rear of the site. The rear extension would project 
3.8m from the existing rear wall with two balconies at first floor level. Three flat roofed dormer 
windows would be added to the front roof slope, two to the rear slope, with a large flat roofed 
dormer to the side.  
 
Private amenity space would be located at the rear of the site and there would be six parking 
spaces at the rear and three to the front.   
 
Description of Proposal 
 
The proposal site contains a large semi detached dwelling with a detached garage to the side. An 
existing crossover into the site from Epping New Road leads to a front paved area. There is a 
large garden area to the rear. The attached dwelling is a similar size to No49 which has been 
converted to flats. The site is bordered to the north by a large detached dwelling (no. 51). An 
extant planning permission exists to demolish the building at no. 51 and erect ten flats with 
associated underground parking (EPF/0822/09, allowed on appeal). The site is also bordered to 
the side and rear by residential properties. The immediate area includes a mix of dwelling styles 
including new build flat developments.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2308/08 - Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed covered swimming pool to rear. Lawful - 
27/01/2009.  
EPF/0351/09 - New single storey dwelling to the rear, provide separate gardens, parking, access 
and refuse for the proposed and existing dwellings. Refuse Permission – 21/05/09. Appeal 
dismissed – 27/11/09.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3 – New Development 
CP4 – Energy Conservation 
CP5 – Sustainable Building  
CP6 – Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas 
DBE6 – Car Parking in New Development 
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
DBE9 – Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
DBE10  - Residential Extensions  
DBE11 – Subdivision of Properties  
ST1 – Location of Development 
ST2 – Accessibility of Development  
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
H2A – Previously Developed Land 

Page 33



H3A – Housing Density 
H4A – Dwelling Mix 
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
40 neighbours consulted – 10 replies received.  
 
Objections were received from the following properties; 
 
4, 11, 17, 19, 21, 23, 36 and 42 Forest Heights and 30 Stag Lane. These can be summarised as 
follows;  
 

• Epping New Road is an extremely busy road with many accidents recorded in the 
immediate area. This development will increase the danger of this busy road. Sight lines 
will be affected by the development. This development would need in access of twelve 
parking spaces and would cause delivery vehicles to park on Epping New Road. Parking 
proposed is inadequate. This will lead to spill over parking on Stag Lane. Noise from the 
proposed parking area will be very intrusive to neighbours in Stag Lane.   

• This development would open the floodgates for similar proposals.  
• The proposal will have a detrimental impact on the character of the area. 
• The development will lead to disruption and pollution. Lorries will be parked incessantly in 

Stag Lane. Concern about pollution and its affect on our daughter who is asthmatic.   
• The dormer windows and balconies will result in overlooking of gardens. 
• This will lead to a stretch on local amenities such as schools.  
• This development will exacerbate disturbance following on from the development at 41/43 

Epping New Road.  
• Surprise that not all residents in Forest Heights were notified.  
• The loss of this lovely old house for flats is regrettable. Flats are springing up on every 

available piece of land.  
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. Impact on infrastructure and there should be 
one parking space per dwelling.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider include; 
 
1. The principle of the development  
2. Potential impact on the character and appearance of the area.  
3. Amenity.  
4. Parking and road safety. 
5. Private amenity space provision 
6. Trees and landscaping issues 
 
Principle of Development  
 
Policy H2A of the adopted Local Plan promotes the reuse of previously developed land in the 
provision of housing and Policy H4A promotes a mix of dwelling styles. This is in line with national 
guidance as contained in Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing) (PPS3). Key characteristics of a 
mixed community include “a variety of housing, particularly in terms of tenure and price and a mix 
of different households such as families with children, single person households and older people”. 
This development would increase the dwelling mix in the immediate vicinity by providing for 
smaller households. The site is also previously developed land, on which PPS3 encourages the 

Page 34



majority of new housing to be located. Policy DBE11 of the Local Plan specifically addresses the 
sub division of properties. This policy indicates that such development is acceptable subject to a 
number of stipulations.  
 
These include; that an undesirable precedent would not be set, that the development would not 
result in excessive noise and disturbance to residents of adjoining dwellings, result in overlooking 
of neighbouring properties or lead to the excessive loss of garden space for parking. The adjacent 
building has been converted to flats (EPF/0907/84) and there are other flat developments in the 
immediate vicinity, both constructed, and approved but not yet constructed. Therefore it is not 
considered that an unwelcome precedent would be set. The other provisos will be addressed in 
the appropriate sections of this report; however the principle of the development is acceptable.  
 
Character of the Area  
 
The existing building forms one of a similar pair and has some level of character. However it does 
not contribute significantly to the character and appearance of the immediate locale. The proposed 
side extension complements the existing building and retains the quoins, window keystone, front 
parapet wall and cornice detailing. The front and rear dormer windows are reasonably sized and 
raise no issues. The side facing dormer is relatively bulky; however it is set back from the front 
elevation and on balance is deemed acceptable. The rear extension is relatively conventional and 
raises no serious issues of design.  
 
A flat complex of ten units has been approved on the site of No51 Epping New Road 
(EPF/0822/09), the immediate northern neighbour. Although the building has not yet been 
constructed there is a realistic proposition that this building could in the future be constructed and 
there is nothing to confirm otherwise. Therefore it is a material consideration which must be given 
appropriate weight. The section of the proposed building that is in close proximity to the common 
boundary steps down considerably from the main body of the building. In this regard a two storey 
extension to the boundary would have appeared over dominant. However amended plans have 
been received which now show the building set in 1.0m at first floor level and this reduces any 
overbearing effect to an acceptable level.   
 
Amenity  
 
The side extension would be built over two storeys adjacent to the common boundary with the 
northern neighbour, No51, and set in 1.0m at first floor level. There is an extant planning 
permission to develop no. 51 as flats as alluded to in the preceding text. At present the addition to 
No49 would be located adjacent to a side garden area. It would not appear particularly 
overbearing when viewed from this property. There would be no material increase in loss of light to 
windows.  
 
Concern has been expressed that the rear balconies and dormer windows would result in 
overlooking, particularly of gardens in Stag Lane. The proposed dormer windows would not 
increase overlooking any greater than the current scenario from first floor rear facing windows. 
Overlooking from balconies can be mitigated by an appropriate condition agreeing a screen along 
the side that is susceptible to overlooking. As the adjoined building is a similar flat development, 
and not a single residential dwelling, there would be no serious increase in noise or disturbance for 
residents of this building. 
 
As stated previously the approved development of No51 Epping New Road is a material 
consideration. The proposed section of the approved building adjacent to the boundary has no 
side facing windows or first floor windows on the rear elevation. Therefore there would be no loss 
of light to windows. There would be no serious impact on ground floor windows. The proposed 
development would project approximately 4.0m beyond the edge of the rear wall on the approved 

Page 35



flat complex. This would be adjacent to the shared amenity space for the complex. However it 
would not appear excessively overbearing and would not result in an excessive loss of amenity.  
 
There is some concern from neighbours of the proposed development about noise from the 
parking area and general disturbance when the development was being constructed. Any increase 
in noise from a parking area would not be material. Concerns about dust and disturbance during 
construction is recognised as a valid concern of residents and as such a condition restricting the 
hours of construction will be attached which will minimise disturbance for residents bordering the 
site.  
 
Parking and Road Safety  
 
A number of objectors have raised concerns that the intensification in the use of the site would 
lead to highway safety concerns. There is excellent visibility in both directions and concerns with 
regards to highway safety are not envisaged. Essex County Council Highways Section has been 
consulted and do not report issues with road safety in relation to this application.  
 
The parking provision for this development is 9 spaces, effectively 1.5 spaces per unit. Essex 
County Council Parking Standards would require 13 spaces at the site to meet these standards. 
However this advice comes with a proviso that a reduction in standards can be accepted in urban 
areas with good transport links. Buckhurst Hill is served by a tube line and buses pass along the 
High Road some 200m from the site. In this location a reduction in the parking standards is 
deemed acceptable. Neighbours have expressed concern that there would be some overspill of 
parking onto the nearby Stag Lane. It is evident that some on street parking occurs on this road. 
However with 1.5 spaces per dwelling proposed it is not evidently clear that this development 
would result in a material impact on highway safety through increased demand for parking in 
nearby streets. Accordingly it is considered that the amount of off street parking proposed is 
acceptable in this location and in compliance with the adopted standards. 
 
A number of conditions have been proposed by the highways section and the development will be 
conditioned accordingly.  
 
Private Amenity Space Provision  
 
Private amenity space is provided by way of a communal garden area to the rear. At 
approximately 180 sq m of useable amenity space, the provision complies with the 
recommendation of the local plan which advises 25 sq m per unit.  
 
Trees and Landscaping  
  
The proposed plans have been amended by the removal of one parking space to the front. This 
allows space to get some planting to the front boundary, which is currently devoid of any greenery, 
and this would soften the currently harsh frontage of the site.  
 
Refuse Provision 
 
The refuse section has expressed concern about the proposed width of the bin store and has 
suggested an increase in depth of 100mm. This can be agreed by condition, along with 
appropriate detailing.  
 
Contaminated Land  
 
The Council’s Contaminated Land Officer has proposed the standard contaminated land 
conditions, owing to the location within the vicinity of a former explosives research laboratory and 
former printing works. The application can be conditioned accordingly with the standard conditions.  

Page 36



 
Conclusion:  
 
The principle of the proposed development is acceptable and in line with local and national policy 
guidance. The proposed design and the position the extension would adopt in the streetscene is 
deemed acceptable. Impact on neighbour amenity can be mitigated by condition. Road safety 
concerns expressed by objectors are noted but there would be no material impact on road safety 
with regards to this development. The parking provision is deemed adequate. Therefore having 
regard to all material planning considerations pertinent to this application it is considered an 
acceptable form of development and recommended for approval with conditions.   
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

69.2m

70.1m

3 8
 t o

 4
2

S h o r e  P o i n t

1 to 17

4 3
 t o

 4
8

1 1

18

10

7
10

3 4

7

3 6
a

3 6

3 8

2222a

43

20

1 3

34

2 3

30

2 5

53
55

51

46

2430a

43

6

1

1

H e i g h t s

3

2 7  t o  5 1

38

F o r e s t

1 to 12
14 to 19

8

Tilney Court1  
t o

 6

71 43

E l  S u b  S t a

9

1

5

3 6

31
L A N E

P A R K  S I D E

S T A G

C H
A N

D O
S  

C L
O

S E

T I LNE Y  R OA D E P
P I

N
G

 N
E W

 R
O

A
D

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/1840/11 
Site Name: 49 Epping New Road, Buckhurst Hill 

IG9 5JT 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 38



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1876/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 9 Staples Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1HP 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

APPLICANT: Mr SimonTinker 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Rear extension at ground floor above existing lower ground 
extension. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531190 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building. 
 

3 The roof lights hereby approved as part of the development shall be of a 
conservation style design. Additional plans at a scale of 1:20 or 1:50 shall be 
submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the details and 
design of the roof lights prior to any commencement of works on site. The roof lights 
shall be in accordance with the approved details.  Any replacement rooflights shall 
also be in accordance with the approved details. 
 

4 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, additional plans 
at a scale of 1:20 or 1:50 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority showing the details of the window in the rear elevation of the new 
development. The window shall be in accordance with the approved details. Any 
replacement window shall also be in accordance with the approved details.  
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
 
 

Page 39



Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks planning permission for the construction of a first floor extension above the 
single storey rear extension.  
 
The extension would consist of the same measurements as the ground floor extension in that it 
would project 2.2 metres from the original rear façade and have a width of 3.5 metres. It would 
consist of a dual pitch roof with a roof light on each slope. Materials are to match those of the 
existing building.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located on the southern side and towards the end of a cul-de-sac known as 
Staples Road within the town of Loughton. The site itself is long and narrow in shape and has a 
significant slope that falls away from the front towards the rear.  
 
Located towards the front of the site is an end of terrace dwelling with living accommodation within 
the roof space. From the highway it appears that the dwelling is double storey, however due to the 
slope of the land the dwelling is in fact three stories. The subject site is located within the Staples 
Road Conservation Area and adjacent to a Locally Listed Building.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPf/1788/02 - Certificate of lawful development for the erection of a rear dormer (refused -
29/10/02). 
 
EPF/2184/02 - Construction of loft conversion with the erection of a dormer window to rear and 
installation of a rooflight to the front roof slope (approved 6/3/03).  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
DBE10 Residential extensions 
HC7 Development within conservation areas 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – Objection 
 
The committee OBJECTED to this application, which was considered contrary to Policies DBE9(i) 
& (iii) of the Epping Forest District Council’s Adopted Local Plan and Alterations, owing to the 
overbearing nature of the proposed works and loss of light to the adjoining property at no. 11 
Staples Road. 
 
NEIGHBOURS 
 
11 STAPLES ROAD, LOUGHTON – Objection 

• The proposed development would result in a loss of light to habitable room windows, in 
particular the kitchen, living room and conservatory. 

• Construction works would result in an unsatisfactory amount of noise, dirt, dust and 
disturbance. 

 
7 STAPLES ROAD, LOUGHTON – Objection 

Page 40



• The proposed extension would result in a considerable amount of light loss to the rear of 
our ground floor and terrace. 

 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be addressed are: 
 

• Design and appearance 
• Neighbouring amenities 

 
Design and appearance: 
 
The proposed extension itself is rather modest in relation to its size and scale. With it measuring 
2.2 metres by 3.5 metres it would not result in an unsatisfactory amount of bulk and mass to the 
rear façade of the dwelling. 
 
Although within the Staples Road Conservation Area the design and appearance of the rear 
façade of the row of terraces has been eroded over time. Many extensions have been constructed 
over the years that are unsympathetic to the original buildings, although since they are not visible 
from any public vantage point no harm is caused to the Conservation Area.  
 
Given what has happened along the rear façade of the row of terraces and more importantly given 
that it would not be seen from any public vantage points, the proposed development would not 
result in harm to the character and appearance of the Staples Road Conservation Area.  
 
Unlike other dwellings within the row of terraces that have inserted double glazed UPVC windows 
that appear unsympathetic, it is proposed in this case to keep a traditional timber framed sash 
window to the rear elevation of the extension. As such the extension would at least incorporate 
traditional features unlike other surrounding extensions.  
 
The proposed extension is appropriate in relation to its design and appearance in that it would not 
result in a harmful impact upon the surrounding locality and the street scene. 
 
Neighbouring amenities: 
 
The proposed development would not result in any material loss of privacy to adjoining occupiers. 
It would also not result in a development that would appear visually intrusive or overbearing when 
viewed from adjoining property occupiers.  
 
Turning to the neighbours’ concerns regarding a loss of light to habitable rooms, on balance it is 
considered that there would not be a significant amount of overshadowing caused by the 
development to warrant a reason of refusal. Due to the minor projection of the development from 
the original rear façade and the orientation of the row of terraces (rear elevations are south facing), 
adequate light would be achieved to adjoining habitable rooms and rear garden areas. It should be 
noted that existing large trees located nearby presently result in more overshadowing of adjoining 
properties than the proposed development would.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, the proposed development is appropriate in terms of its design and appearance and 
would not result in a harmful impact upon the amenities of adjoining property occupiers. The 
development is in accordance with the policies contained within the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and therefore it is recommended that the application be granted permission subject to 
conditions.  

Page 41



 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

48.5m

37.5m

39.6m

49.7m

44.2m

W a r d  B d y

51

59
57

65

6 7

7 9

7 1

82

8 9

94
7

31

35

11

1715

21

1 4

10
4

24

15

21 3 4

West Lodge

1

2

1 0

13

East Lodge

3

5

1  t o  6F o r e s tCo u r t

1 5
5

T H
E  DRI VE

F O R E S T  R O A D

S T A P L E ' S  R O A D

S HAF T E S BURY

S ta p le s  Hill P a th
EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/1876/11 
Site Name: 9 Staples Road, Loughton 

IG10 1HP 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 43



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1901/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 23 Tomswood Road 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5QP 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Darshan Sunger 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolish existing bungalow and erection of a two storey 
dwelling with loft, and erection of front boundary wall and 
gates. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531283 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 By reason of its close proximity to adjoining boundaries and its excessive size and 
scale the proposed development would appear disproportionately large on the site 
and in relation to 21 and 25 Tomswood Road. As such it would be harmful to the 
character and appearance of the locality and the surrounding area contrary to 
policies CP2 and DBE1 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

2 The proposed development, by reason of its excessive size, scale and its siting in 
close proximity to both adjoining bungalows, would result in an intrusive and 
unneighbourly development that would appear overbearing.  It would consequently 
be harmful to the amenities of the occupiers of 21 and 25 Tomswood Road, contrary 
to Policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

3 By way of its poor design, in particular its size and scale, the proposed front 
boundary wall and gates would appear as a visually intrusive and over-dominant 
feature that would be harmful to the character and appearance of the locality 
contrary to policies CP2 and DBE1 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Knapman 
(Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (h) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks planning permission to demolish the existing bungalow and the erection of a 
two storey dwelling along with the erection of front boundary wall and gates. 
 
The proposal is best understood in the context of the recent planning history for the site. Planning 
permission was granted recently under delegated powers for the demolition of an existing 

Page 44



bungalow and the erection of a two storey 4 bedroom dwelling house ref: EPF/0428/11. The 
applicant subsequently applied for planning permission to make amendments to the approved 
development. This application ref: EPF/1264/11 was refused by the Area Plans Sub Committee.  
 
The applicant is now re-applying to make amendments to the original granted permission whilst at 
the same time taking on board the reasons of refusal made by the Area Plans Sub Committee.     
 
The latest amendments proposed under this application include: 
 

• The flank walls of the dwelling house are to be set nearer both side boundaries. As 
approved they are set 1.5 metres from the boundaries. The present proposal would set 
them 1 metre from the boundary. In that respect, the proposal is no different to that refused 
by Committee.  

• Some changes have been made to the internal layout and as a result adjustments have 
been made to window and door openings. 

• New front boundary wall with iron railings and gates. Their overall height would be 1.8 
metres with the railings set on a 250mm high plinth.    

 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located on the southern side of Tomswood Road approximately 110 metres 
east of Audleigh Place within the parish of Chigwell. The site itself is regular in shape however 
there is a slight slope that falls across the land from east to west.  
 
Currently located on the site is a small bungalow finished from facing brickwork. Off street parking 
is located on the hard standing area towards the front of the bungalow and a private open space 
area is located towards the rear of the site.  
 
The subject site is located within a built up residential area that comprises a mixture of building 
forms, styles and sizes. A bungalow is located on the plots either side of the subject site. Further 
along Tomswood Road there are a number of double storey dwellings.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2627/10 - Demolish existing bungalow and erection of a two storey dwelling with loft. 
(withdrawn 3/2/11) 
 
EPF/0428/11 - Demolish existing bungalow and erection of a two storey dwelling with loft. 
(Revised application) (approved with conditions 26/4/11) 
 
EPF/1264/11 - Demolish existing bungalow and erection of a two storey dwelling with loft, and 
erection of front boundary wall and gates. (Amendment to application EPF/0428/11) (Refused 
9/9/11) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 Achieving Sustainable development objectives 
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
DBE1 Design of new buildings 
DBE2 Detrimental effect on existing surrounding properties 
DBE6 Car Parking in new development 
DBE8 Private amenity space 
DBE9 Loss of Amenity 
LL10 Protecting existing landscaping features 

Page 45



ST4 Highway safety 
ST6 Vehicle parking 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – No objection. 
 
NEIGHBOURS – No objections. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
It should firstly be noted that planning permission (ref: EPF/1264/11) was recently refused by the 
Area Plans Sub Committee for the following reasons: 
 

1. By reason of its close proximity to adjoining boundaries and its excessive size and scale 
the proposed development would appear disproportionately large on the site and in relation 
to 21 and 25 Tomswood Road. As such it would be harmful to the character and 
appearance of the locality and the surrounding area contrary to policies CP2 and DBE1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
2. By reason of its poor design the proposed first floor rear projection would appear as a box 

attached to the rear façade of the building. As a result the rear projection would form a poor 
relationship with the rear facade of the building and the rear dormer window in that it would 
appear disjointed and unbalanced. As such, it would be contrary to policies CP2 and DBE1 
of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
3. The proposed development, by reason of its excessive size, scale and its siting in close 

proximity to both adjoining bungalows, would result in an intrusive and unneighbourly 
development that would appear overbearing.  It would consequently be harmful to the 
amenities of the occupiers of 21 and 25 Tomswood Road, contrary to Policies DBE2 and 
DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
4. By way of its poor design, in particular its size, scale and excessive use of brickwork, the 

proposed front boundary wall and gates would appear as a visually intrusive and over-
dominant feature that would be harmful to the character and appearance of the locality 
contrary to policies CP2 and DBE1 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
In order to overcome some of the above reasons of refusal, the applicant has removed the first 
floor rear extension, made a slight adjustment to the rear dormer and has made revisions to the 
proposed front boundary treatment.  
 
Given that the first floor rear extension has been removed and adjustments made to the position of 
the rear dormer window, the design and appearance of the rear façade of the dwelling house is 
now appropriate and therefore has overcome the second reason of refusal. 
 
Although the current proposal overcomes the second reason of refusal, the other three reasons of 
refusal have not been dealt with sufficiently enough for the application to be approved.   
 
In relation to the first reason of refusal, the applicant has made no attempt to amend the size, 
scale and siting of the development from that which was previously refused.  
 
It is not reasonable for a development of this size and scale to only be set back a metre from both 
side boundaries. During pre-application discussions, prior to the submission of application 
EPF/0428/11 that was subsequently approved, it was negotiated with the applicant that the new 

Page 46



dwelling house would be setback 1.5 metres from both side boundaries to not only protect the 
appearance of the street scene but also to protect the amenities of adjoining occupiers.   
 
Within the covering letter that accompanied application EPF/0428/11 the agent states: 
 
“Space between flank walls of the proposed house and the boundaries of number 21 and 25 
increased from 1m to 1.5m, thus reducing the overall width of the two storey house by 1m. This 
would result in much better street scene and relationship of the proposed house to adjoining 
bungalows”. 
 
The proposed amendment to reduce the setback distance of the flank walls from 1.5 metres to 1 
metre would result in going back to square one and bring up the same concerns and issues for 
why the first application was withdrawn. 
 
Reducing the setback distance from both side boundaries to 1 metre would increase the overall 
size, scale and bulk of the dwelling house and would extend across virtually the whole width of the 
plot. As such the dwelling house would not provide a smooth transition between both adjoining 
bungalows and would appear as a large visually intrusive and overbearing development dwarfing 
the bungalows. As a result the proposal would be harmful upon the character and appearance of 
the street scene contrary to policies DBE1, DBE2 and CP2. 
 
Turning to the third reason of refusal, it was determined that under the approved application ref: 
EPF/0428/11, a setback of 1.5 metres from either side boundary would not only result in a better 
relationship between adjoining dwellings in terms of street scene appearance, but it would also not 
result in a harmful impact upon the amenities of the adjoining occupiers. By moving the flank walls 
of the development closer to the side boundaries it would result in a harmful impact to the 
amenities of adjoining property occupiers, particularly those of number 21. The proposal is no 
different to that refused by the committee in relation to the development’s size, scale and siting. 
Therefore the development would continue to be an intrusive and unneighbourly development that 
would appear overbearing contrary to policies DBE2 and DBE9. 
 
Turning to the last reason of refusal regarding the front boundary treatment, it is noted that the 
applicant has changed the design of it by reducing the amount of brickwork.  
 
Front boundary treatments along Tomswood Road mainly consist of low lying brick walls or small 
hedges resulting in an open aspect along the street scene. It is noted that there are some taller 
forms of boundary treatment on Tomswood Road that consist of low brick plinths with iron railings. 
Both adjoining properties have low lying brick walls. 
 
The proposed front boundary treatment consists of a brick plinth with brick pillars up to 1.8 metres 
in height and iron railings in-between and two iron railing gates.  
 
Although the amount of brickwork has been reduced, it is considered that the size, scale and the 
overall design would result in the boundary treatment being a visually intrusive and overbearing 
development, harmful to the open aspect, appearance and character of the street scene on this 
part of Tomswood Road. As such the front wall and gates would still be contrary to policies DBE1 
and CP2 and as such the fourth reason of refusal has not been dealt with.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, although the applicant has overcome the second reason of refusal, it is considered 
that the applicant has not sufficiently dealt with or addressed the other reasons of refusal of 
application EPF/1264/11. 
 

Page 47



The proposed development as revised would continue to result in a dwelling house that would be 
harmful to the appearance and character of the street scene and the surrounding locality contrary 
to policies DBE1, DBE2 and CP2. Also, due to its excessive size and close position to the 
adjoining bungalows, it would continue to have a harmful impact upon the amenities of adjoining 
occupiers contrary to policy DBE9. In addition, the proposed front boundary treatment would be 
out of character to the surrounding area and street scene due to its excessive size and poor 
design. The application is therefore recommended to be refused.  
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

Page 48



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

62.8m

57.9m

E E R  &  C o  C o n s t  B d y
B o r o  C o n st &  L B  B d y

12

20

1 7

16

13

14

2

9

7

5

9

29

8

15

17

9

1 6

B r o o k  H o u s e

N
EW

 FO
R

ES T LA
N

E

T OM S WOOD  R OA D

A
U
D
L EI G

H
P LA

C
E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/1901/11 
Site Name: 23 Tomswood Road, Chigwell 

IG7 5QP 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 49



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1908/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 40 Dickens Rise 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6NY 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Ben Aston  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey side and rear extension, single storey front 
extension (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531340 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings on the first floor of the eastern flank elevation of the extension shall be 
entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks planning permission for the construction of a double storey side and rear 
extension and a single storey front extension. 
 
The existing garage to the side of the dwelling house would be removed to make way for the 
development.  
 
The single storey front extension would project 0.7 of a metre from the existing front façade of the 
building. It would consist of a new bay window with a pitch roof extending across the majority of 
the width of the front façade and would enclose the front entrance area. 

Page 50



 
The double storey side/rear extension would wrap around the south western corner of the existing 
dwelling house.  
 
The extension would have a width of 2.7 metres and a depth of 12 metres at ground level.  At first 
floor the depth would be 11m since it would be setback a metre behind the existing front façade. 
The rear extension would project 3.5 metres from the original rear façade and have a width of 5.9 
metres. A single storey projection to the side of the double storey side/rear extension would 
measure 1.3 metres by 7 metres and would be setback 0.9 of a metre from the side boundary. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located on the southern side of Dickens Rise within the parish of Chigwell. The 
site has a narrow frontage before it widens out towards the rear. It is relatively level and comprises 
of approximately 450 square metres.  
 
Located towards the front of the site is a double storey detached dwelling house finished from 
facing brickwork. An integral garage is attached to the side of the dwelling house. A timber paling 
fence is located on the side and rear boundaries. To the rear of the site is a private garden area 
with a number of mature trees.  
 
The subject site is located within a well established residential area that comprises mainly of 
double storey detached and semi detached dwellings. Front setbacks from the highway are 
staggered and spaces/gaps between building blocks form an important component to the 
character of the surrounding area. The subject site backs onto the London Underground (Central 
Line).  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1102/11 - Two storey side and rear extension, single storey front extension and first floor side 
extension (refused 3/8/11).   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
DBE10 Residential extensions 
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: 
 
The Council OBJECTS to this application on the grounds that it will cause a severe loss of light 
and privacy to number 38. It will also cause a loss of privacy to number 42 and subsequent 
dwellings. 
 
NEIGHBOURS: 
 
38 DICKENS RISE, CHIGWELL – Objection 
 

• The proposed development would be inappropriate in terms of its size and siting. 
• It would result in a bulky, visually intrusive and overbearing development upon our 

property.  
• It would result in a loss of light to habitable room windows.  

Page 51



• The proposed development would result in a loss of privacy due to overlooking. 
 
42 DICKENS RISE, CHIGWELL – Objection 
 

• The proposed building extensions are bulky, overbearing and out of scale with 
neighbouring properties. 

• The proposed development is an inappropriate design out of character to surrounding 
properties. 

 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be addressed are as follows: 
 

• Design and appearance 
• Neighbouring amenities 

 
Design and appearance: 
 
Front setbacks from Dickens Rise are a little inconsistent within the immediate locality in that the 
subject dwelling house is set slightly forward of front façade of number 38, but is set behind the 
front façade of number 42. This is due to the fact that these dwellings are located on the bend of 
Dickens Rise and as such have staggered setbacks from the highway.  
 
Although the proposed front extension would project a further 0.7 of a metre from the existing front 
façade, it is still considered that it would provide a smooth transition between the front building 
lines of both adjoining properties and therefore not have a harmful impact upon the street scene. 
 
Double storey extensions are not normally permitted to be constructed up to the side boundary in 
order to avoid a terrace effect within the street scene and maintain open spaces between 
dwellings. Due to the angle of the side boundary, the double storey element of the side extension 
would be set back 1 metre from the boundary towards the front of the dwelling and almost 4 
metres to the rear of the dwelling. The siting of the double storey element would ensure that the 
character of the street scene is maintained. It is noted that the single storey element of the 
extension would be constructed within 0.9 of a metre from the side boundary. This is also 
appropriate.  
 
A projection of 3.5 metres for the double storey rear component of the overall development is 
appropriate. It would be sited well off both side boundaries and would not impact upon the rear 
building line of the surrounding area.  
 
The size and scale of the development is appropriate. It would not appear as an overdevelopment 
of the site due to it appropriate siting and size. The size and scale of the proposed development 
would not be that different from other extensions within the surrounding area. The development 
would not be large in terms of its bulk and mass and it would form an integral part of the original 
dwelling house. 
 
In relation to the street scene, the front façade of the dwelling house would be well articulated as 
the first floor of the side extension would be set behind the existing front façade and the addition of 
the bay window and pitch roof would provide some symmetry and balance creating a visually 
interesting development overall.  
 
The siting, size and appearance of the development is appropriate. It would not result in a harmful 
impact to the character and appearance of the street scene and the character of the surrounding 
area.  

Page 52



 
Neighbouring amenities: 
 
Turning to the concerns of both adjoining neighbours in relation to a loss of light to habitable room 
windows and private garden areas, it is considered that adequate sunlight and daylight would be 
achieved throughout the majority of the day as not to result in any significant harm. 
  
The only window on the flank elevation of the adjoining property of number 38 is the one that 
serves a rear conservatory. Although the proposed development might cause some 
overshadowing in the late afternoon, adequate sunlight and daylight would still be achieved 
through the principal window that faces south.   
 
It is also considered that the proposed development, in particular the first floor side extension, 
would not result in any significant overshadowing of the ground floor living room window or the first 
floor bedroom that face north overlooking the street to warrant a reason for refusal.  
 
In relation to the other adjoining property of number 42, it is considered that the proposed 
development is set a reasonable distance away as not to result in a greater material detriment in 
relation to overshadowing from those of existing conditions.  
 
Turning to the issues relating to a loss of privacy, it is noted that two first floor flank windows are 
proposed that would face the adjoining property of number 38. These windows serve a landing 
area and a bathroom. Both of these windows would be conditioned to be obscure-glazed to 
prevent any direct overlooking. Existing screening on the boundaries would also prevent any 
overlooking from ground floor door opening. 
 
The proposed development would not result in a visually intrusive or an overbearing development 
when viewed from adjoining properties. In particular there was a concern that the side/front 
extension would be visually intrusive from the ground and first floor windows that face onto the 
highway of number 38. It is considered that there would not be a significant material difference by 
adding a small bay window and a pitch roof to the front façade of the dwelling house from that of 
existing conditions. It should be noted that the first floor of the side extension would be set back a 
metre behind the front façade and as such would hardly be seen from these windows.   
 
The proposed development would not result in a harmful impact upon the amenities of adjoining 
occupiers in relation to overshadowing, overlooking or visual blight. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed development is appropriate in terms of its siting, size and scale and as such it would 
not result in a harmful impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding locality and 
street scene. It would also not result in a harmful impact to the amenities enjoyed by adjoining 
occupiers. The development is in accordance with the policies contained within the Adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations and therefore it is recommended that the application be granted permission 
subject to conditions. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 

Page 53



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

37.8m

43.9m

37.5m

33.5m

* *

116

B a n k

PO

10

22

24

1

1 7
7

1 8 5

36

Garage

1 8
1

1 7
9

5

1 8
7

1 9
1

1 8
9

114a

1 1

14

26

7 3

9

1 5

8

1

2 5

46a
48

46

60

2 1

3 1

6

D I
C K

E N
S  

R I
S E

B R
O O

K  
M

E W
S

N E W  B A R N S  W A Y

SL

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/1908/11 
Site Name: 40 Dickens Rise, Chigwell 

IG7 6NY 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 54



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee  
 
Date of meeting: 12 December 2011 
 
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, April 2011 to September 2011 
  
Officer contact for further information:  Nigel Richardson (01992 564110). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Mark Jenkins (01992 564607) 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 
 
Report: 
 
1. (Director of Planning & Economic Development) In compliance with the 
recommendation of the District Auditor, this report advises the decision-making 
committees of the results of all successful appeals, particularly those refused by 
committee contrary to officer recommendation.  The purpose is to inform the committee 
of the consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal is 
found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of costs may be made against 
the Council. 
 
2. To set the context, a previous Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) for 
district councils was to aim to have less than 40% of their decisions overturned on 
appeal.   The last available figure for the national average for District Councils was 
30.9%.  That BVPI was scrapped but replaced by one which records planning appeals 
only (not advertisement, listed buildings, enforcements, telecommunications or tree 
related appeals).  That too was dropped as a National Indicator but the Council instead 
created a Local Performance Indicator (LPI 45). In previous years, this target has been 
to not exceed 25% of allowed decisions.   In recent years the Council performance has 
been 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 2004/05, 22% in 2005/06, 30% in 2006/07, 29% in 
2007/08, 40.3% for 2008/09, 30.9% in 2009/10 and 36.6% in 2010/11.  
 
3. For 2011/12, there are now two local indicators, one of which measures planning 
application  appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer recommendations (KPI 
55) and the other which measures the performance of officer recommendations and 
delegated decisions (KPI 54).    
 
Performance 
 
4. Over the six-month period between April 2011 and September 2011, the Council 
received 50 decisions on appeals (41 of which were planning related appeals – including 
1 tree related appeal and 9 were enforcement related). Of these, 17 were allowed (34%). 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 55



5. For KPI 54 and KPI 55, which only consider appeals against the refusal of 
planning related permission (so does not include enforcement, tree-related appeals, nor 
appeals against conditions), the 6-month performance figure in total is 30% allowed (12 
of 40 appeals).  
 
Planning Appeals 
 
6. Out of the 13 planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to 
refuse contrary to the recommendation put to them by officers during the 6-month 
period, 6 were allowed and 7 dismissed. 46.15% of appeals resulting from committee 
reversals were therefore not allowed on appeal. The Council was not successful in 
sustaining the committee’s objection in the following 6 cases: 
 
Area Cttee South (4 Allowed): 
 
EPF/1689/10 Demolition of existing dwelling and erection Hedgeside  
 of a replacement detached dwelling house. 132 High Road  
  Chigwell  
 
EPF/1796/10 Replacement dwelling and relocation of garage. 22 Albion Hill   
   (Amended application from EPF/1832/07  Loughton 
   including alterations comprising the inclusion  Essex 
   of a balcony, replacement and rear dormers  IG10 4RD 
   with rooflights and modifications to the garage  
   roof - resubmitted application)   
 
EPF/2125/10 Change of use of land for a Golf Teaching Land adjoining Clays  
 Practice Facility. (D1/D2.) Revised application. Lane/ Junction of  
   Englands Lane  
  Loughton  
 

EPF/0031/11 Erection of double storey rear extension Broom House  
 from lower ground floor (basement), front Little Plucketts Way   
 car parking canopy and alteration of roof Buckhurst Hill  
 by removal of existing dormer and 
 insertion of roof light windows.  

 
Area Cttee East (1 Allowed): 
 
EPF/1097/10 Removal of agricultural occupancy condition. Oaklee Farm   
  Manor Road    
  Lambourne End  
 

Area Cttee West (1 Allowed): 
 
EPF/1452/10 Change of use of building to single  Greenacres 
   dwellinghouse and release from S106. Tatsfield Avenue 
   agreement Nazeing 
 

 

Page 56



7. Therefore, the committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if they 
are considering setting aside the officer’s recommendation it should only be in cases 
where members are certain they are acting in the wider public interest and where the 
committee officer can give a good indication of some success at defending the decision. 
This is now highlighted as a separate performance target (KPI 55) and therefore comes 
under more scrutiny. However, at this 6 month point, the performance (46.15%) is being 
achieved in that the target of 50% in not being exceeded.     
 
8. In respect of KPI 54, of the 27 planning application decisions made by the 
Director of Planning & Economic Development under delegated powers or 
recommended to the Committee for refusal, 6 were allowed (22.22%), slightly in excess 
of the target of 20%.  
  
9. Out of 9 enforcement notice appeals decided, 4 were allowed and one part 
allowed/part dismissed as follows:  
 
Allowed: 
  
ENF/0652/08 – Mixed use as agriculture and residential by stationing of mobile homes 
and caravans – Rose Farm, Hamlet Hill, Roydon. 
 
ENF/0010/10 – Two portacabins as ancillary use to Class B8 use of site – Gallmans End 
Farm, Manor Road, Lambourne. 
 
ENF/0025/10 – Balcony at the rear second floor and rooflights on the rear roof – 22 
Albion Hill, Loughton. 
 
ENF/0677/10 – Caravan and Mobile Homes, fencing, hardstanding and use of land for 
residential purposes (5 year permission)  – Auburnville, Carthegena Estate, Nazeing.  
 
Part Allowed/ Part Dismissed: 
 
ENF/0294/09 – L-shaped stable block (Dismissed), Log Store (Allowed) – Red Cottage, 
New Farm Drive, Abridge. 
 
Costs 
 
10. During this period, there were 3 successful finalised award of costs made against 
the council. Circular 03/2009 Costs Awarded in Appeals and Other Planning 
Proceedings advises that, irrespective of the outcome of the appeal, costs may only be 
awarded against a party who has behaved unreasonably and thereby caused the party 
applying for costs to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process.  
 
11. In the case of Hedgeside, 132 High Road, Chigwell (EPF/1689/10), the Planning 
Inspector awarded costs on the grounds of lack of realistic and specific evidence about 
the consequences of the proposed development in the Council’s statement. This was a 
committee reversal case, where the committee had been quite specific over the harm, 
but this had not been as specific in the officer’s written representation appeal statement. 
The lesson to be learned from this case is that officers are now confirming their 
statement with the committee presenting planning officer and watching the webcast 

Page 57



before sending off their appeal statement justifying the decision. The cost in this case 
amounted to £3,179.40.    
 
12. In respect of Oaklee Farm, Manor Road, Lambourne End (EPF/1097/10), also a 
committee reversal, Members had included a particular reason that the agricultural 
dwelling had not been sufficiently marketed, (which would have justified the agricultural 
occupancy condition being removed), which relied on a disagreement about the asking 
price that should have been set. The Inspector after the hearing concluded that the 
appellant though had unnecessarily carried out a further period of marketing to support 
their appeal despite the appellants marketing already adhering to the requirements of 
the Local Plan. This was unnecessary and he therefore ordered the Council to pay a 
partial award of costs for this part of work in relation to the second reason for refusal. 
The costs came to £6,783.49. 
 
13. The Planning Inspectorate’s quashing of an enforcement appeal resulted in an 
award of costs of £1711.98 against the Council in respect of Land South of Canes Lane 
and North of Weald Hall Lane, North Weald, after failing to follow the appeal procedure. 
This coincided with a sudden absence from work of a staff member responsible for this 
procedure and deadlines were missed. The appellant had already prepared their appeal 
and Circular 03/2009 sets out a number of examples of unreasonable behaviour in 
regard to award of costs, one of which is the failure to provide relevant information within 
statutory time limits. It is the additional work carried out by the appellant as a result of 
the failure to comply in time that has incurred the cost of £1711.98. 
     
Conclusions 
 
14. Whilst performance in defending appeals has improved, particularly in respect of 
committee reversals, Members are reminded that in refusing planning permission there 
needs to be justified reasons that in each case, must be relevant, necessary, but also 
sound and defendable. If Members are to disagree with submitted evidence, as in the in 
Oaklee Farm case, it needs to be substantiated and clear before a decision on the 
planning application is made and additional reasons beyond a similar previous refusal, 
where circumstances have not changed, may be seen by the Inspector, as in this case, 
as being spurious.   
 
15. A full list of decisions over this six month period appears below. 
 
Appeal Decisions April 2011 to September 2011 
 

Planning Appeals Allowed: 
 

Buckhurst Hill 
1 EPF/0031/11 Erection of double storey rear extension from 

lower ground floor (basement), front car 
parking canopy and alteration of roof by 
removal of existing dormer and insertion of 
roof light windows. 

Broom House 
Little Plucketts 
Way 
Buckhurst Hill 

Chigwell 
2 EPF/0326/11 Part single storey ground floor rear extension. 9 Lodge Close   

Chigwell 
3 EPF/1027/11 Single storey front and rear extensions to 39 Bracken 

Page 58



existing bungalow and roof alterations with 
front and rear dormers. 

Drive 
Chigwell 

4 EPF/1689/10 Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 
a replacement detached dwelling house. 

Hedgeside 
132 High Road 
Chigwell 

Lambourne 
 
5 EPF/1097/10 Removal of agricultural occupancy condition. Oaklee Farm   

Manor Road    
Lambourne 
End 

Loughton 
 
6 EPF/0529/11 Ground and first floor rear extension. 

(Revised application to EPF/2090/10) 
27 Algers 
Road   
Loughton 

7 EPF/1796/10 Replacement dwelling and relocation of 
garage. (Amended application from 
EPF/1832/07 including alterations comprising 
the inclusion of a balcony, replacement and 
rear dormers with rooflights and modifications 
to the garage roof - resubmitted application) 

22 Albion Hill  
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4RD 

8 EPF/2125/10 Change of use of land for a Golf Teaching 
Practice Facility. (D1/D2.) Revised 
application. 

Land adjoining 
Clays  
Lane/ Junction 
of 
Englands Lane 
Loughton 

Nazeing 
 
9 EPF/1452/

10 
Change of use of building to single 
dwellinghouse and release from S106 
agreement.  

Greenacres 
Tatsfield 
Avenue 
Nazeing 

10 EPF/1510/
10 

Removal of 1.83 m brick wall and erection of 
1.83 m boundary. (Retrospective application) 

2 Rochford 
Avenue 
Waltham 
Abbey   

11 EPF/2493/
10 

Variation of condition 2 'timescale' on 
planning permission EPF/1204/10(Alteration 
and retention of existing unauthorised 
building with reduced floor level and change 
of pitched roof to flat roof) to allow 12 months 
for completion. 

20 Godwin 
Close 
Sewardstone 
Road 
Waltham 
Abbey 

Planning Appeals Part Allowed/Part Dismissed 
 
Epping Upland 
 
12 EPF/2152/10 Retention of three sets of gates and pillars 

and new roadway. 
Griffins Wood 
House 
Copped Hall 

Page 59



Estate 
High Road 
Epping 

Planning Appeals Dismissed 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
 
13 EPF/1690/10 Demolition of existing garages and erection of 

a detached one bedroom residential dwelling. 
(Revised application) 

Land Rear of 
11a Loughton 
Way 
Buckhurst Hill   

Chigwell 
 
14 EPF/0206/11 Two storey side extension and front entrance 

porch. 
45 Coolgardie 
Avenue 
Chigwell 

15 EPF/1406/10 Conversion of Grange Court, Chigwell School 
from a boarding house to a Pre-Prep School, 
including a new single storey extension, 
internal and external refurbishment and 
associated landscaping works. (Revised 
application) 

Grange Court 
High Road 
Chigwell 

16 EPF/1408/10 Grade II* listed building application for the 
conversion of Grange Court, Chigwell School 
from a boarding house to a Pre-Prep School, 
including a new single storey extension, 
internal and external refurbishment and 
associated landscaping works. (Revised 
application) 

Grange Court  
High Road 
Chigwell  
 

Epping 
 
17 EPF/0001/11 Demolition of existing ambulance station and 

garage. Erection of new two storey station 
with ambulance shelter. 

Ambulance 
Station 
The Plain 
Epping 

18 EPF/2310/10 Two storey rear extension to provide retail 
storage. 

178 High 
Street 
Epping 

19 EPF/2667/10 First floor rear extension, loft conversion and 
elevation improvements. 

10 Lower Bury 
Lane Epping 

High Ongar 
 
20
  

EPF/0267/11 Single storey front extension. (Revised 
application) 

4 Norton 
Mandeville 
Norton Lane 
High Ongar 

Lambourne 
 
21 EPF/1786/10 Retrospective application for placing of two 

portakabin buildings on land for staff facilities 
ancillary to the use of buildings G2, G3 and 

Gallmans End 
Farm 
Manor Road 

Page 60



G4 for class B8 use. (Revised application)  Lambourne 
22 EPF/2647/10 Conversion of existing building at rear of site 

to residential house ancillary to Woodgrange, 
including erection of new first floor within 
mansard roof. 

Woodgrange 
52 Ongar 
Road 
Lambourne 

Loughton 
 
23 EPF/0797/11 Single storey front detached garage. 

(Revised application) 
37 Upper Park 
Loughton 

24 EPF/1429/10 Erection of proposed 3 bed, two storey 
dwelling with walk out basement level to the 
rear. (Revised application) 

12 -18 Pump 
Hill Loughton 

25 EPF/1794/10 Change of use from A1 use class (Retail) to 
A2 use class (Professional and financial). 

Hype 
Menswear   
251 High Road 
Loughton  

26 EPF/1814/10 Erection of single storey house on land to 
rear. 

50 Hanson 
Drive 
Loughton 

27 EPF/2330/10 TPO/EPF/15/06 T1 - Ginkgo biloba - Fell to 
ground level and treat stump with herbicide 

Dryads Hall 
Woodbury Hill 
Loughton 

Matching 
 
28 EPF/0220/11 Conversion of garage and sub-division of 

existing dwelling to form two, separate, 
dwellings. (Revised application) 

Wyses Barn   
Hobbs Cross 
Road 
Matching   

29 EPF/1994/10 Proposed subdivision of site into 3 separate 
dwellings, including part demolition and 
conversion of Threshers House into two 
dwellings, extension and alterations together 
with further sub division of cottage. Part 
demolition of garage, erection of two 
replacement garages, realignment of drives 
and boundaries. 

Threshers 
Threshers 
Bush 
Nr The Lavers 

Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers 
 
30
  

EPF/1700/10 Erection of a single dwelling. Wood Farm 
Moreton Road 
Moreton   

Nazeing 
 
31 EPF/1857/09 Change of use of land to a residential gypsy 

caravan site for 10 pitches and creation of 
new access, hardstanding and turning head. 

Land at The 
Meadows 
Carters Mead   
Waltham Road 
Nazeing 

32 EPF/2289/10  Proposed two storey side extension to 
provide granny annexe. 

CWS Nursery   
Hoe Lane 

Page 61



Nazeing 
33 EPF/2644/10 Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 

replacement 4 bed dwelling. 
6 The Mead 
Nazeing New 
Road Nazeing 

North Weald Bassett 
 
34 EPF/0531/11 Erection of garage in the style of a cart lodge. Popps Mead 

Harlow 
Common 

35 EPF/1123/10 Retention of permanent residential mobile 
home site for gypsy and traveller use. 

Carisbrook 
Farm 
Kiln Road 
North Weald 

36 EPF/1428/10 First floor side extension. 33 Hampden 
Close 
North Weald   

37 EPF/1428/10 Retrospective application for change of use of 
buildings to B1, B2,  B8 and car repairers. 

Chase Farm  
Vicarage Lane 
North Weald   

Theydon Bois 
 
38 EPF/1357/10 Demolition of existing dwelling and garage 

and erection of a detached chalet style 
dwelling with integral garage. 

Auchinleck  
Theydon Park 
Theydon Bois 

Waltham Abbey 
 
39 EPF/0084/11 Erection of a detached garage with a studio 

within the roof space 
113 
Monkswood 
Avenue, 
Waltham                   
Abbey 

40 EPF/0212/11 Proposed front and rear dormer windows. 
(Duplicate application) 

Dahmoi  
Sewardstone 
Road 
Waltham 
Abbey 

 
 

 
Enforcement Appeals Allowed 
  
ENF/0652/08 – Mixed use as agriculture and residential by stationing of mobile homes 
and caravans – Rose Farm, Hamlet Hill, Roydon. 
 
ENF/0010/10 – Two portacabins as ancillary use to Class B8 use of site – Gallmans End 
Farm, Manor Road, Lambourne. 
 
ENF/0025/10 – Balcony at the rear second floor and rooflights on the rear roof – 22 
Albion Hill, Loughton. 
 

Page 62



ENF/0677/10 – Caravan and Mobile Homes, fencing, hardstanding and use of land for 
residential purposes (5 year permission)  – Auburnville, Carthegena Estate, Nazeing.  
 
Enforcement Appeals Part Allowed/ Part Dismissed: 
 
ENF/0294/09 – L-shaped stable block (Dismissed), Log Store (Allowed) – Red Cottage, 
New Farm Drive, Abridge. 
 
Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 
 
ENF/0042/08 – Roof alterations and additions, 2-storey and single storey extensions, 
conservatory and porch at Crumps Farm, Tawney Common, Theydon Mount. 
 
ENF/0453/08 – Hard surface wet weather horse exercise area – Rose Farm, Hamlet Hill, 
Roydon. 
 
ENF/0606/10 – Change of use from A1 retail shop to sui generis fish pedicure and spa – 
169 High Road, Loughton. 
 
ENF/0757/10 – Erection of fence adjacent highway – 210 Nine Ashes Road, High 
Ongar. 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Members Photographs 2011-12

	3 Minutes
	7 CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/EPF/11/11: EMMAUS WAY
	8 Development Control
	South 30 Nov 2011

	9 Probity in Planning - Appeal Decisions, April 2011 to September 2011

